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ABSTRACT:

The IEEE 802.15 Working Group for Wireless Personal Area Networks (WPANs) has received the attached Liaison Letter (e-mail) from the Bluetooth Special Interest Group.  This liaison letter was proceeded by five (5) document submissions as well as attendance at four (4) IEEE meetings:

· Bluetooth Special Interest Group Formed May 20, 1998

· Liaison #1 July 7, 1998 P802.11-98/253

· Liaison #2 September 15, 1998 -98/300

· Liaison #3 October 26, 1998 -98/350 (Minutes only)

· Liaison #4 December 14, 1998 J. Carlo 802 Overview to Bluetooth SIG

· Liaison #5 March 9, 1999 -99/053 Tutorial

· Liaison #6 July 1, 1999 -99/028 Letter Of Intent P802.15-99/028 (this submission)

http://www.bluetooth.com/
This Bluetooth "Letter Of Intent" was prompted based on the above as well as the The second WPAN Call For Proposals, proposals for Medium Access Control and Physical Layers, dated June 14, 1999 and the June 17, 1999 liaison e-mail from IEEE to Bluetooth requesting their attention the CFP (see Appendix).

icg
From:
Kardach, Jim [jim.kardach@intel.com]

Sent:
Thursday, July 01, 1999 5:29 PM

To:
Gifford, Ian C.; Bob Heile (E-mail) (E-mail)

Cc:
Orjan Johansson (E-mail); Peter Lee (E-mail); Warren Allen (E-mail); Sami Inkinen (E-mail)

Subject:
Bluetooth SIG Request to submit technology to 802.15

To whom it may concern,

This letter is to inform the IEEE 802.15 working group know that it is the intention of the Bluetooth Special Interest Group (SIG) to submit the "Bluetooth 1.0 Foundation" specification for use by the IEEE as a foundation for developing their 802.15 technology.   An appropriate copyright license agreement will be entered into between the Bluetooth SIG and IEEE to allow this exchange.  It is the desire of the Bluetooth SIG that the 802.15 standard maintain compatibility with Bluetooth  specification  in order to (1) prevent  consumer and user confusion that could result from noninteroperable specifications, and (2) provide a mechanism to test interoperability between Bluetooth and 802.15 solutions by maintaining appropriate testing interfaces.

The Bluetooth 1.0 Foundation specification will be  publicly  available in late July  time frame.  In the meantime, however  the Bluetooth SIG  can provide the "Bluetooth 1.0 Draft Foundation" specification to IEEE technical writers who are or are employed by members of the Bluetooth SIG (we can provide a CD with the original Framemaker 5 files beginning of July).  These documents are  expected to be substantially identical,  but the "Bluetooth 1.0 Draft Foundation" document  must be  approved (which happens mid July) by the Bluetooth SIG in order to be published as the "Bluetooth 1.0 Foundation Specification" .

On the condition that the IEEE 802.15 standard

a)   is 100% compatible with the Bluetooth 1.0 Foundation Specification (as measured by a certified Bluetooth test house)

b) Maintains and requires inclusion of Bluetooth testing interfaces as described in the current Bluetooth specification (to allow interoperability testing between Bluetooth and 802.15 compliant solutions)

the Bluetooth SIG promoters are prepared to provide a grant of a nonexclusive, reasonable and non-discriminatory, nontransferable, nonsublicenseable, worldwide license under its Necessary Claims to make, have made, use, import, offer to sell and sell products which comply with the  802.15 Specification; provided that such license shall not extend to features of a product which are not required to comply with the Specification or for which there exists a feasible, noninfringing alternative.  It should be noted that there may be Bluetooth adopters who owns Necessary Claims on the Bluetooth Specification.  To the extent that the Bluetooth promoters are aware of such claims, the promoters are prepared to inform IEEE of such claims.  It is up to the adopters to determine whether and how they might want to license such claims to IEEE members. 

With respect to any 802.15 extensions (beyond Bluetooth 1.0 specification), the Bluetooth SIG promoters are prepared to grant similar licenses ONLY IF such extensions do not break interoperability with  existing Bluetooth 1.0 certified radios and are approved in writing by the Bluetooth SIG.  

Additionally the Bluetooth SIG is currently in discussions with ETSI to develop a world-wide standard based on Bluetooth that covers the entire Bluetooth  capabilities stack.  If these discussions go forward, then the Bluetooth SIG would like ETSI and IEEE coordinates their efforts so that both standards interoperate.

James Kardach

Bluetooth SIG Chairman

jim.kardach@intel.com

(408) 765-4469

Appendix
From:
Gifford, Ian [giffordi@amp.com]
Sent:
Thursday, June 17, 1999 4:56 PM

To:
Kardach, Jim [jim.kardach@intel.com]

Cc:
Tom Siep [siep@ti.com]

Subject:
Bluetooth SIG Request to submit technology to 802.15

Jim,

Feel free to distribute the following.

Per our discussion last week the IEEE P802.15 is interested in defining the timeframe as well as roles and responsibilities for the planned submission [MS Word '97] of the Bluetooth Specification Volume 1 & 2 v1.0 as an IEEE P802.15 draft standard.  We have outlined a few items for you to consider:

A. IEEE P802.15 Second Call For Proposals

First off we want to call your attention to our Second Call For Proposals:

http://grouper.ieee.org/groups/802/15/pub/1999/Jul99/CFP2r1c.html
from our discussion last week you indicated that the BT SIG Adopters release for v1.0 was likely to be late June 1999 but that for IEEE P802.15 planning purposes July 1999 was when we should plan on getting a draft submission.  Additionally, you indicated that European Summer vacations might provide an additional delay pushing our receipt date into August 1999.  What date should we plan on?

This Second Call For Proposals should be addressed by the BT SIG.  Based on the above it appears that a BT draft submission "L2CAP and Below" by July 1, 1999 is out of the question therefore a simple one page letter/e-mail of intent should suffice.  Any questions please call.

Note: Some of the BT SIG Adopters that are also IEEE 802.15 Members have discussed what we can do between now and the BT submission date.  Assumptions/Questions:

· "L2CAP and Below" will not change that much v0.9 to v1.0

· Maybe the Adopter/IEEE'ers e.g., Tom Siep, TI could start work early in the form of a BT SIG "Draft Standard Working Group"; objective: prepare the draft standard submission.  Is this possible?
· Last week there were a few sidebar discussions e.g., Tom Siep - TI to Thomas Mueller - NMP, and Tom Siep - TI to Mahmoud Naghshineh - IBM, etc. and we found similar interests from the BT Specification Contributors.

· Also during the various meeting last week we thought that having "direct participation" (meeting attendance, telecons, etc.) from the BT Specification Contributors or Owners is the best.  We understand that the v1.0 organization may be different than the v1.x to v2.0 organization.

· Finally, we also discussed that having BT Specification Contributors or Owners as "Mentors" may also be a way to reduce the translation issues.

We have attached a MS PowerPoint file to help communicate our team organization.  This file is called the Draft Functional Organization Chart with Assignments.  The idea is to use it to add participant or mentor names for both Bluetooth and IEEE.

Note: If it easier to just provide your response in ASCII text that is fine too.

B. Bluetooth/IEEE Proposed Plan

Per prior discussions and e-mails the following highlights our Proposed Plan

· 802.15 working group will make a request (~Jun 1999) for technologies that meet usage models established by IEEE

· 802.15 anticipates these usage models to be similar to what Bluetooth has overviewed during IEEE Liaisons

· 802.15 would like Bluetooth SIG to submit (~Jul 1999) the finalized specifications (Vol. 1 & 2) to the 802.15 group for consideration [MS Word '97]

· Final specification will be voted on by the group, no guarantees that the specification will move forward, however there is a desire to not fragment the market, achieve some level of coexistence, and possibly a 2.4GHz spectrum etiquette.

C. Bluetooth/IEEE Proposed Timeline

· Proposed Timeline

· Jul 1999 - Initial Discussion on Proposal submissions

· Note 1: Specification from Bluetooth introduced into the committee. The committee should do a review of this specification and clarify, understand what problems it will create with other 802 standards, etc. ARE THERE OTHER PROPOSALS? 

· Note 2: If the submission date slips to Aug 1999 or Sep 1999 there is a potential to slip the end date.

· Nov 1999 - Initial draft ready for WG ballot.

· Jan 2000 - First Ballot complete, second ballot kicked off.

· Mar 2000 - Draft ready for IEEE sponsor ballot. 

· Jul 2000

· Nov 2000

· Dec 2000 - Approval by IEEE Standards Board  

Our next IEEE 802 LMSC Plenary meeting will be held the week of July 5-9, 1999 at:

Queen Elizabeth Hotel

900 Rene-Levesque Blvd West

Montreal, PQ H3B 4A5 CANADA

Reservations: (800) 441-1414

Phone: (514) 861-3511

Fax: (514) 954-2256

http://grouper.ieee.org/groups/802/meeting/MI799p2.html
I understand that we will have a few new faces from the Bluetooth SIG in attendance.  This is good because attendance determines who becomes WG voting members.  Voters determine if a draft standard is approved.

Again, thanks for your time last week.  In particular having Mahmoud Naghshineh attend and present L2CAP and LMP during the Bluetooth/IEEE Liaison Meeting on Monday afternoon was appreciated by the WG.

Best Regards,

-Ian
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D. Kawaguchi, Symbol Technologies
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Jim Kardach, Intel Corporation
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